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Introduction 

On Monday, August 29, 2016, at 3:30 p.m., John Earl Seiler will stand before this 

Honorable Court to receive his sentence for having committed the offense of Theft of 

Tribal Property, in violation of 18 U.S.C. § 1163.  A final Presentence Investigation 

Report (hereinafter referred to as APSR@) has been completed and was published to the 

parties on August 17, 2016.  There is one outstanding objection to the scoring of the 

advisory guidelines and the resulting advisory range.  (ECF No. 23, PageID.79-80, 

Addendum at 1 and 2.)  The objection and supporting memorandum will be filed in a 

separate filing. 

Legal Discussion 

In compliance with United States v. Booker, 543 U.S. 220 (2005), as clarified by 

Gall v. United States, 552 U.S. 38 (2007), and Kimbrough v. United States, 552 U.S. 85 

(2007), the Court is directed to consider a number of factors in determining a defendant=s 

sentence.  After correctly calculating a defendant=s advisory sentence guideline range, the 

Court is to listen to arguments by the parties as to the appropriate sentence to be imposed.  

The Court is then to look to the sentencing statute 18 U.S.C. § 3553(a) to find support for 

the sentences advocated by the parties.  Based upon due consideration of the advisory 

range, the positions of the parties, and the § 3553(a) factors, the Court is to impose a 

sentence that is sufficient, but not greater than necessary, to achieve the purposes of 

sentencing.  Should the Court choose to impose a sentence outside of the advisory 

guideline range, the Court is expected to explain the departure or variance to such an  
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extent that the defendant and any reviewing Court may understand the basis for the 

Court=s chosen sentence. 

18 U.S.C. § 3553(a) Factors  

1. (a) Nature and Circumstances of the Offense. . . .         
                            

John Earl Seiler pled guilty to Theft of Tribal Property, in violation of 18 U.S.C. § 

1163.  Mr. Seiler has admitted his wrongful conduct.  Mr. Seiler admitted that between 

December of 2014 and July of 2015, he embezzled approximately $27,600.58 from the 

Quality Inn and Suites in Battle Creek, Michigan, which was owned by his employer, the 

Nottawaseppi Huron Band of Pottawatomi.  Mr. Seiler, at about the time the Tribe was 

conducting its investigation, confessed his theft to his supervisor.  The theft was 

accomplished by removing cash from deposits of receipts received by the Inn. 

(b) . . . and the History and Characteristics of the Defendant. 
 

John Earl Seiler is 59 years old.  Mr. Seiler has never been married and has no 

children.  As detailed in paragraph 47 of the PSR, Mr. Seiler was in a long time 

committed relationship for 30 years before his partner passed in 2015 of a particularly 

debilitating disease.  This affliction was fatal to Mr. Seiler’s companion and very 

stressful to the caregiver, Mr. Seiler. 

Mr. Seiler has no criminal history, a highly unusual circumstance for a 59 year old 

man appearing in federal court.  He is a true criminal history category I. 

 Mr. Seiler suffers from a gambling addiction.  Almost all of the money he took, he 

gambled away at the Fire Keepers Casino next door to the Inn.  Casino records confirm 

this spending by him in an amount similar to that stolen.  Mr. Seiler believes that his 
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gambling addiction became worse after the death of his partner.  It appears the theft from 

the Quality Inn, while supporting his gambling habit, was also, in significant part, due to 

his belief that the loss of his life partner was largely ignored, and barely acknowledged, 

by his co-workers and employer. 

Mr. Seiler does not offer these circumstances as an excuse for the theft, but, as he 

has worked through the emotional loss, the theft, and the embarrassment from which he 

suffers, it has helped him to understand his actions.  Of course, the need to understand 

why one has acted as aberrantly as Mr. Seiler did here is important for the perpetrator to 

come to grips with his inadequacies and failures.  It is necessary for a person to 

understand his shortcomings as prelude to not repeating the conduct. 

 Mr. Seiler’s embarrassment for conduct is genuine and deep.  The recognition of 

his conduct caused him to lock himself up in his home alone for two weeks due to the 

disappointment he felt in himself. 

 Mr. Seiler regrets his conduct. He apologizes to the Tribe, his co-workers, and this 

Court, as society’s representation at large, for his wrongdoing.  He cannot imagine 

sinking this low again. 
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2.   The Need for the Sentence Imposed: 
(a) To Reflect the Seriousness of the Offense, to Promote Respect for 
the Law, and to Provide Just Punishment for the Offense; 
(b) To Deter the Defendant and Others from Committing Like 
Conduct; 
(c) To Protect the Public; and 
(d) To Provide the Defendant with Needed Rehabilitative Treatment 
in an Effective Manner. 
 

Like most federal offenses, this offense is serious.  This defendant has been 

brought to federal court to answer for this offense.  He is aware that this Court has a wide 

discretion in determining the just punishment for him and his conduct.  He fears going to 

prison. 

Fortunately, this is neither a crime of violence, nor was it a particularly 

sophisticated scheme.  The amount of loss here is an amount that the defendant may 

actually be able to repay to the victim in his lifetime.  (One cannot but be struck by the 

anomalous situation here, wherein the perpetrator of the crime spent the wrongfully 

gained funds at another of the victim’s business endeavors, and will now be paying 

restitution to that victim for the money taken from that victim to “buy” the services 

(gambling) of the same victim.) 

 Mr. Seiler is unlikely to be in any position to commit a like offense in the future 

given the record he has created for himself here.  His current employer is aware of his 

charge and pending sentencing.  He handles no money or receipts for his new employer.  

Therefore, individual deterrence does not appear to be a major issue in this sentencing.  

Of course, general deterrence is a consideration in every case, but again, someone who  

 

Case 1:16-cr-00032-JTN   ECF No. 24 filed 08/22/16   PageID.88   Page 7 of 9



 
 8 

may be contemplating a like crime under the same circumstances, probably does not 

spend a lot of time thinking of consequences. 

 Certainly the rehabilitation of the defendant is an important consideration here.  

Mr. Seiler should remain involved in Gamblers Anonymous and, perhaps, undergo 

additional psychological counseling.  It is also important for any defendant in these types 

of cases to try to make the victim whole. 

  3.  The Kinds of Sentences Available. 

Statutorily, the Court has its full complement of potential sanctions available 

under the law.  From probation with no incarceration to imprisonment, the Court may 

impose any sentence it deems sufficient, but not greater than necessary, under the law. 

4.  The Advisory Guideline Range as Expressing the Sense of the 
Legislature. 

 
The advisory guideline range is 6 to 12 months. (Offense Level 10, Criminal 

History Category I.)  If the Court grants the defendant’s objection to the advisory 

guidelines, the range falls to 0 to 6 months based upon an Offense Level of 8, Criminal 

History Category I.  This latter range would expand the Court’s options under the 

advisory guidelines. 

5.  Any Other Policy Statement. 

The Court is reminded that the sentencing statute gives explicit directive to the 

Courts to apply the “parsimony principle.”  A “sufficient” sentence here may well be 

found at or below the low end of the advisory guideline range. 
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6.  Unwarranted Disparities. 

No unwarranted disparities appear to be implicated here. 

7.  Restitution. 

Restitution is an issue in this case.  The amount of restitution due is correctly 

determined in the PSR. 

Conclusion 

John Earl Seiler prays that this Honorable Court sentence him sufficiently, but not 

greater than necessary, to achieve the goals of sentencing.  He thanks the Court for its 

time in considering his circumstances and this case. 

 
Respectfully submitted, 

 
SHARON A. TUREK 
Federal Public Defender 

 
Dated:  August 22, 2016   /s/ Richard D. Stroba    

RICHARD D. STROBA 
Assistant Federal Public Defender 
50 Louis, NW, Suite 300 
Grand Rapids, MI 49503 
(616) 742-7420 
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